
CITY OF TONGANOXIE

May 4, 2020
7:00 Regular Meeting

REMOTE MEETING – See City of Tonganoxie website at www.tonganoxie.org for more information.
There may be an audio recording of the meeting which will be utilized to prepare the meeting minutes.

Honorable David Frese, Mayor
Council Members

Rocky Himpel              Jacob Dale           Lisa Patterson Loralee Stevens Chris Donnelly

Open Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m.

I. Pledge of Allegiance 

II. Approval of Minutes – Regular meeting dated April 20, 2020

III. Consent Agenda
a) Review bill payments

IV. Open Agenda
Open agenda is not available during this meeting. Comments received by the City Clerk or emailed to 
info@tonganoxie.org by 1:00 PM on the day of the meeting will be reviewed and possibly shared for 
review by the Governing Body. 

V. Old Business

VI. New Business
a) Presentation of Safest City Award 

b) Consider Approval of Roof Repairs at Water Well House Facility

c) Consider Amendment to Tonganoxie Industrial Park Economic Development Grant Agreement with 
Leavenworth County

d) City Manager Agenda
1. Urgent Needs Grant Update
2. Library Project Update & Final Financial Report

e) City Attorney Agenda

f) Mayor Pro Tem Agenda

g) City Council Agenda

h) Mayor Agenda

VII. Information & Communications (No Action Required)

VIII. Adjourn



 

CORE/3516145.0002/159185185.1 

City Council Meeting Minutes 
April 20, 2020 

7:00 PM Meeting 
 

Open Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 
 
I. Pledge of Allegiance (Replaced by Moment of Silence) 

 Mayor Frese opened the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 

 Mayor Frese, Mr. Himpel, Mr. Donnelly, Ms. Stevens, Ms. Patterson, and Mr. Dale participated via Zoom. City 

Manager George Brajkovic, Assistant City Manager Dan Porter, and City Attorney Anna Krstulic also participated 

via Zoom.   

 Mayor Frese noted that a flag was not available for the pledge of allegiance and instead led a moment of silence.  

 

II. Approval of Minutes – Regular meeting dated April 6, 2020 

 Ms. Patterson said that a flag was not available at the last meeting and asked that the draft minutes be 

amended to reflect that the pledge of allegiance was not completed.  

o Mr. Donnelly made a motion to approve the minutes from the April 6, 2020 City Council meeting, with the 
change requested by Ms. Patterson.  

o Ms. Patterson seconded the motion.  
o Roll call vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 
III. Consent Agenda 

a) Review bill payments 
o Ms. Patterson made a motion to approve the consent agenda.  
o Mr. Donnelly seconded the motion.  
o Roll call vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 

IV. Open Agenda 

 No open agenda sign ups or submitted comments provided at this meeting.  

 
V. Old Business 

 

VI. New Business 
a) Consider Appointment Procedure for Planning Commission Positions with Terms Expiring in 2020 

 Mr. Brajkovic introduced the item. 

 Ms. Krstulic reviewed the memo included in the agenda packet regarding redundant provisions in the City Code 

and the Zoning Code pertaining to the Planning Commission and Board of Zoning Appeals, including a conflict 

regarding the appointment process, and recommended that the Governing Body consider omitting one of the 

two conflicting references.  She explained the procedure for revising the Zoning Code, which requires 

consideration by the Planning Commission and a public hearing.  The Governing Body may initiate the process by 

recommending that the Planning Commission consider certain revisions.  

 Mr. Brajkovic suggested following the City Code provision that calls for May appointments.  He asked if the 

Governing Body wants to proceed with advertising open positions on the Planning Commission. 

 Ms. Krstulic advised that a motion is not required to advertise the openings or to request the Planning 

Commission to consider changes to the Zoning Code; only consensus of the Governing Body is needed.  

o The Governing Body unanimously agreed to advertisement of the three upcoming Planning Commission 
positions and requesting that the Planning Commission consider changes to the Zoning Code to remove 
inconsistencies and redundancy with the City Code pertaining to the Planning Commission and Board of 
Zoning Appeals. 



 

CORE/3516145.0002/159185185.1 

 
b) Consider Approval of 2020-2021 Plan Year Employee Benefit Renewals   

 Mr. Porter introduced the item and shared information about the City’s 2020-2021 renewal options for current 

employee benefits.  

 Mr. Donnelly asked about the annual costs for employee health insurance benefits and whether the City goes 

out for bid on employee benefits each year.  

 Mr. Porter replied that the annual costs to the City for health insurance coverage is approximately $325,000, 

with about $38,000 in costs reimbursed by the Library for Library employee benefits. He said that the City 

employs a broker to shop rates for dental and vision insurance, but the City has not sought bids for health 

insurance benefits for at least the past several years.  

 Mr. Donnelly said that with the level of cost and financial impact of renewal rate increases, he would like to see 

more details about the comparison of the renewal option with rates from other health insurance providers in 

the market. 

 Mr. Brajkovic confirmed that staff will take steps to provide comparisons in advance of the next renewal period.   

  Ms. Patterson asked that staff also include consideration of benefit costs in the topics to consider for the 

development of the 2021 Budget.  

o Ms. Patterson made a motion to authorize execution of an agreement with Blue Cross Blue Shield of Kansas 
for employee health insurance coverage, an agreement with Delta Dental of Kansas for employee dental 
insurance coverage, and an agreement with VSP Vision Care for employee vision insurance coverage for plan 
year 2020-2021. 

o Ms. Stevens seconded the motion.  
o Roll call vote of all ayes, motion carried. 

 
c) City Manager Agenda 

1. Urgent Needs Grant Update 

 Mr. Brajkovic shared an update on the construction activity at the project.  

2. Library Project Update 

 Mr. Brajkovic said that one additional payment was anticipated to be made to JE Dunn prior to completion of 

the design-build project and expenditure of all budgeted costs.  

3. Tonganoxie Industrial Park Economic Development Grant Update 

 Mr. Brajkovic said that he is working with Leavenworth County staff to arrange future discussions between the 

Governing Body and the Board of County Commissioners regarding potential use of remaining grant funding. 

 Mr. Brajkovic stated that staff continue to collect information and create contingency plans regarding the 

upcoming decision about whether to open the Tonganoxie Water Park in 2020 in light of COVID-19.  

 Mr. Brajkovic reminded the Governing Body that the May 4th meeting would include a 7 PM regular meeting and 

a budget work session focused on developing the City’s Capital Maintenance and Improvements Plan (CMIP).   

4. March 2020 Financial Reports 

 Mr. Porter shared the March 2020 financial report with the Governing Body.  

 
d) City Attorney Agenda 

 
e) Mayor Pro Tem Agenda 

 Mr. Himpel shared that the Leavenworth County Board of Commissioners would soon consider changes to the 

Board and County Planning Commission public hearing procedures due to COVID-19.    

 

f) City Council Agenda 
 



 

CORE/3516145.0002/159185185.1 

g) Mayor Agenda 
1. Community Events Discussion – Tonganoxie Days Status Update 

 Mayor Frese stated that all events in June 2020 will be rescheduled in September 2020 due to COVID-19.   

 

VII. Information & Communications (No Action Required) 
 

VIII. Adjourn 
o Ms. Patterson made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  
o Mr. Dale seconded the motion.  
o Roll call vote of all ayes, motion carried.  
o Meeting adjourned at 8:18 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 



Vendor Number Payment Amount Number

1102 Infrastructure Solutions, LLC 04/24/2020 Regular 0 98972.43 47495
1135 Insco Industries, INC 04/17/2020 Regular 0 28520 47465
0059 Kansas City Board of Public Utilities 04/17/2020 Regular 0 16853.19 47467
0671 Evergy 04/17/2020 Regular 0 12360.57 47461
1139 GeoSource 04/24/2020 Regular 0 6000 47493
0491 OLATHE WINWATER WORKS 04/17/2020 Regular 0 5593.12 47474
0414 LINK-LITE NETWORKING, INC. 04/17/2020 Regular 0 4385 47472
1068 Stinson LLP 04/24/2020 Regular 0 4115.82 47507
1006 UV DOCTOR LAMPS, LLC 04/24/2020 Regular 0 3738.79 47510
0051 BG CONSULTANTS INC 04/24/2020 Regular 0 3574.5 47489
0579 SECURITY BENEFIT - 457 04/17/2020 Regular 0 3569.6 47480
0001 911 CUSTOM 04/17/2020 Regular 0 3425.57 47453
0641 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES 04/17/2020 Regular 0 3345 47485
1066 Western Consultants 04/24/2020 Regular 0 2499.96 47512
0813 FREESTATE ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 04/17/2020 Regular 0 1811 47462
0316 KANSAS DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 04/17/2020 Regular 0 1301 47468
0522 POLYDYNE INC 04/17/2020 Regular 0 1201.68 47477
0990 TIRE HUB 04/17/2020 Regular 0 943.52 47484
0229 HAYNES EQUIPMENT CO 04/24/2020 Regular 0 757.94 47494
0857 MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS 04/24/2020 Regular 0 727.68 47500
0500 OREILLY AUTO PARTS 04/17/2020 Regular 0 633.4 47475
0330 KANSAS GAS SERVICE 04/17/2020 Regular 0 632.58 47469
1083 Bay Bridge Administrators, LLC FSA 04/17/2020 Regular 0 616.68 47457
0503 PACE ANALYTICAL SERVICES INC 04/24/2020 Regular 0 529 47503
0857 MIDCONTINENT COMMUNICATIONS 04/17/2020 Regular 0 510.72 47473
0555 RICOH USA, INC. 04/17/2020 Regular 0 455.35 47479
0831 AXON 04/17/2020 Regular 0 408.75 47454
0046 BAY BRIDGE ADMINISTRATORS, LLC 04/17/2020 Regular 0 403.85 47456
0600 SPECTRUM PAINT 04/17/2020 Regular 0 385.88 47481
0617 TBS ELECTRONICS, INC. 04/17/2020 Regular 0 362 47482
0946 MUNICIPAL CONSULTING LLC 04/24/2020 Regular 0 360 47501
0038 B & W FIRE LLC 04/17/2020 Regular 0 358.9 47455
0477 NAVRATS 04/24/2020 Regular 0 318.25 47502
0660 Premier Automotive of Bonner Springs KS, LLC 04/24/2020 Regular 0 306.41 47505
0070 BROTHER' S MARKET 04/24/2020 Regular 0 299.89 47490
0426 LEAVENWORTH COUNTY  SHERIFF OFFICE 04/24/2020 Regular 0 293.9 47498
0110 CODE PUBLISHING INC 04/24/2020 Regular 0 253.5 47491
1018 UNITED RENTALS 04/24/2020 Regular 0 247.54 47508
0015 ALL SEASONS CAR WASH 04/24/2020 Regular 0 236.4 47487
0732 METLIFE - GROUP BENEFITS 04/24/2020 Regular 0 235.12 47499
0142 Division of Health and Environmental Lab 04/17/2020 Regular 0 216 47459
0249 HONEYBEE SEPTIC SERVICE 04/17/2020 Regular 0 215 47464
1140 American Fence Company 04/24/2020 Regular 0 214.23 47488
1014 The League of Kansas Municipalities 04/17/2020 Regular 0 200 47483
0542 QUILL 04/24/2020 Regular 0 187.62 47506
0929 KS DEPT OF HEALTH & ENVIRONMENT 04/17/2020 Regular 0 185 47470
0166 EMERGENCY REPORTING 04/17/2020 Regular 0 181.33 47460
0095 CHUX TRUX OLATHE 04/17/2020 Regular 0 154.98 47458
0651 USA BLUE BOOK 04/24/2020 Regular 0 139.38 47509
0391 LAWRENCE JOURNAL WORLD 04/17/2020 Regular 0 119.58 47471
0205 GALL'S LLC 04/17/2020 Regular 0 101.94 47463
0111 COLEMAN EQUIPMENT INC 04/24/2020 Regular 0 101.11 47492
0514 PITNEY BOWES, INC. 04/24/2020 Regular 0 84.99 47504
0542 QUILL 04/17/2020 Regular 0 72.63 47478

Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

Check Report
City of Tonganoxie, KS

Date Range: 04/17/2020 - 04/30/2020

Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount



Vendor Number Payment Amount Number
0656 VERIZON WIRELESS 04/24/2020 Regular 0 53.56 47511
0305 KACM-KS.ASSOC. COURT MNGMT 04/17/2020 Regular 0 50 47466
0651 USA BLUE BOOK 04/17/2020 Regular 0 45.65 47486
0513 PINE LANDSCAPE CENTER 04/17/2020 Regular 0 45 47476
0393 LAWRENCE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 04/24/2020 Regular 0 30 47497
0335 KANSAS MUNICIPAL JUDGES ASSOC. 04/24/2020 Regular 0 25 47496

EFT's 0 0 0.00 0.00

76 60 0.00 213,967.49

Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00

Regular Checks 76 60 0.00 213,967.49
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Payable

Count
Payment

CountPayment Type Discount Payment

Date Range: 04/17/2020 - 04/30/2020

Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount



998 Gen Fund-Pooled Cash 4/2020 213967.49
213967.49

76 60 0.00 213,967.49

Fund Summary
Fund Name Period Amount

Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00

EFT's 0 0 0.00 0.00

Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Payable
Count

Payment 
CountPayment Type Discount Payment

Regular Checks 76 60 0.00 213,967.49

Date Range: 04/17/2020 - 04/30/2020

All Bank Codes Check Summary



City of Tonganoxie www.tonganoxie.org (913) 845-2620

Office of the City Manager 
AGENDA STATEMENT 

DATE:  May 1, 2020 

TO: Honorable David Frese and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Greg Lawson, Police Chief 

SUBJECT:  Safewise 4th Safest City in Kansas 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Recently, I received correspondence from a company called Safewise.  Safewise is an organization 
that contextualizes national crime and safety trends to show how they affect communities.  They 
examine safety and security products, then notify consumers of their findings.  
 
On April 15, 2020, Safewise presented us with their annual community safety and crime prevention 
award.  This was due to Tonganoxie ranking as the 4th safest city in Kansas (based on crime rates).   
Although we did not solicit the award or ask for consideration, we are very proud of our community 
and Department for this type of recognition.   
 
To better understand how we were considered, I contacted the company and learned the following: 
 

Safewise uses only crime data from the Federal Bureau of Investigation Uniform Crime Report 
(FBI UCR).  A Safewise data analyst calculates the violent and property crime rates for each 
city and state based on the total crimes in each (violent and property) per 1,000 people.  

 
Safewise normalizes the data for each state (rates are being compared just within that state and 
not the whole nation).  Violent crime and property crime are weighted equally, and city 
rankings are based on both of these factors.  

 
The company only ranks cities that are at or above the median population in Kansas.  There 
are some limitations of FBI UCR data, but it's the primary measuring tool of the cities in the 
nation.  Safewise also looks at their State of Safety survey data, which collects the sentiment of 
citizens and their perceptions of crime.   
 

Our entire community should share in this great accomplishment and the Department is extremely 
proud to be part of it.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Safewise Award 
Safewise Report 
 
cc:  George Brajkovic, City Manager 

Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 



Sa
fe

W
is

e 
is 

pr
ou

d 
to

 p
re

se
nt

 th
is 

aw
ar

d 
to

 th
e 

ci
ty

 o
f

co
m

m
un

ity
 s

af
et

y 
an

d 
cr

im
e 

pr
ev

en
tio

n.
  

th
e 

sa
fe

ty
 a

nd
 s

ec
ur

ity
 o

f i
ts

 re
sid

en
ts

.

Ka
th

er
in

e 
To

rr
es

, P
re

sid
en

t o
f S

af
eW

ise

To
ng

an
ox

ie

To
ng

an
ox

ie
 w

as
 ra

nk
ed

 th
e 

4t
h 

Sa
fe

st
 C

ity
 in

 K
an

sa
s 

du
e 

to
 it

s 
co

m
m

itm
en

t t
o 



























  

 
Office of the City Manager 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
 
DATE:  May 4, 2020 
TO:  Honorable Mayor David Frese and Members of the City Council 
FROM:   Dan Porter, Assistant City Manager 

SUBJECT:  Request for award of bid and approval to authorize repairs to Well House Facility Roof  

 
DISCUSSION: 
Ongoing deterioration of the roof materials predated a recent failure during windy conditions on a portion of the 
roof of the Well House facility located immediately to the east of the Water Plant Facility at 1536 E 4th Street. 
Damage included complete failure of a portion of the roof designed for use as one of two access hatches to 
complete periodic maintenance on critical pumps located almost 100 feet underground near the City’s water 
production wells. Water infiltrating the failure point also damaged some underlying materials that will require 
replacement. The condition of the shingles on the remainder of the roof, which are at least 10+ years old, 
indicate the most cost effective action would be re-shingling the roof and repairing the damaged access hatch.  
 

           
 
The tabulation of the 3 bids collected for performance of these services is listed below. Based on the bids and 
consideration of the project requirements, staff recommends approval of the low bid received for the repairs to 
the City Hall roof with Andy’s Roofing and Exteriors. At this time it is anticipated that the work could commence 
in May 2020 and be completed in May 2020.    
 
Andy’s Roofing and Exteriors, LLC - $4,720.00 
Stewart Roofing Company -   $5,135.00 
Above All Construction -   $8,351.67 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
While the proposed expense is unanticipated and of an urgent nature, the impact of the expense on the 2020 
budget is minimal due to bid outcomes. The expenditure will be made out of the City’s Water Capital 
Improvement Fund. Depending on development activity levels in 2020 and the resulting amount of water 
infrastructure assets that are required to be purchased from the Water Capital Improvement Fund, there may 
not be a need to complete a 2020 Budget Amendment later in the year. Staff will continue to monitor budget 
expenditure authority levels for the remainder of 2020.    
 
ACTION(S) NEEDED: 
Make a motion to approve a bid with Andy’s Roofing and Exteriors, LLC to repair the Well House facility roof 
for an amount not to exceed $4,720.00  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Well House Roof Repair Quotes (3) 
 
cc:  George Brajkovic, City Manager 

Kent Heskett, Public Works Director 









1 
CORE/3516145.0002/159098663.1

FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT (this "Amendment") is made as of 
_______________, 2020 (the "Effective Date") between the City of Tonganoxie, Kansas (the 
"City"), and Leavenworth County, Kansas (the "County").

RECITALS

A. The City and the County entered into that certain Contract dated May 1, 2017 (the 
"Original Contract") pursuant to which the County contributed $5,000,000 (the "Grant") to the 
City for certain improvements to the Tonganoxie Industrial Park (the "Project"). Capitalized 
terms used in this Amendment but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned 
to them in the Original Contract.

B. Pursuant to Section 4.D of the Original Contract, the City was required to exercise 
all good faith efforts to expend the Grant within eighteen (18) months of the date of the Original 
Contract.  

C. The City entered into contracts for completion of the Project and provided 
monthly updates to the County, all as required by the Original Contract. Despite its good faith 
efforts, the City has not expended all of the Grant.  

D. As of the Effective Date, the City has approximately $1,700,000 remaining of the 
Grant.  

E. The City and the County desire to enter into this Amendment to acknowledge the 
satisfaction of certain conditions set forth in the Original Contract and to clarify the City's rights 
with respect to the Grant, all as more particularly set forth below.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the City and the County agree that the Original Contract is 
hereby amended as follows:

1. Incorporation of Recitals; Defined Terms. The foregoing recitals are true and 
correct and are hereby incorporated herein by reference.  Capitalized terms used in this 
Amendment shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Original Contract, unless otherwise 
defined herein.  In the event of any inconsistency between the terms of this Amendment and the 
Original Contract, this Amendment shall control.

2. Acknowledgment of Satisfaction of Conditions. The City and the County
acknowledge and agree that all conditions set forth in Sections 4 and 5 of the Original Contract 
have been fully satisfied, and the parties have no further obligations to one another related to the 
same.

3. Remainder of Grant. The City and the County agree that the City shall retain the 
remainder of the Grant to incentivize development of the Tonganoxie Business Park, in 



2 
CORE/3516145.0002/159098663.1

accordance with the purpose of the Original Contract as set forth in Section 3 of the Original 
Contract.  The City has discretion to determine how it will expend the Grant; provided, however, 
that the City will provide updates to the County, at least quarterly or upon request of the County, 
regarding the expenditure of the Grant until the City expends the entirety of the Grant.

4. Counterparts; Electronic Signatures.  This Amendment may be executed at 
different times and in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and 
all of which combined shall constitute one and the same instrument.  The City and the County
agree that a signed facsimile copy or scanned and electronically mailed copy of this Amendment 
shall be as effective as an original signed Amendment.  In proving this Amendment, it shall not 
be necessary to produce or account for more than one such counterpart signed by the party 
against whom enforcement is sought.

5. Affirmation of Agreement. All other terms and provisions of the Original 
Contract that are not specifically modified by this Amendment shall remain in full force and 
effect, unmodified by the terms of this Amendment.  All references herein or in the Original 
Contract to the "Contract" shall mean and refer to the Original Contract as amended by this 
Amendment.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank; signatures follow.]



3 
CORE/3516145.0002/159098663.1

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to be executed as of 
the Effective Date.

CITY:

THE CITY OF TONGANOXIE, KANSAS

By:
David Frese, Mayor

ATTEST:

Patricia C. Hagg, City Clerk



4 
CORE/3516145.0002/159098663.1

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to be executed as of 
the Effective Date.

COUNTY:

LEAVENWORTH COUNTY, KANSAS

By:
Doug Smith, Chair, 
Board of County Commissioners

ATTEST:

Janet Klasinski, County Clerk

















City of Tonganoxie CDBG Tracker
Date: 4/30/2020

Grant Liabilities
Projection Actual Remaining

1b. Public Facilities Sewer Line Const 282,514.00 98,972.43 183,541.57

1h. Engineering Design 31,421.00 30,600.00 821.00

1i. Construction Inspection 23,565.00 4,195.50 19,369.50

3a. Grant Administration 10,000.00 4,999.92 5,000.08

Subtotal Grant Costs 347,500 138,768 208,732

City Liabilities
Projection Actual Remaining

Publications 500.00 380.00 120.00

Legal Services 2,000.00 2,500.00 (500.00)

Subtotal City Costs 2,500 2,880 (380)

Budget Actual Balance Remaining
Total Project Liabilities 350,000 141,648 208,352



La
nd

Ac
qu

is
iti

on
Co

st
s

Bu
dg

et
Ac

tu
al

Co
st

sI
nc

ur
re

d
Ba

la
nc

e
Re

m
ai

ni
ng

La
nd

Pu
rc

ha
se

19
5,

14
9.

00
19

2,
92

1.
94

2,
22

7.
06

Ge
ot

ec
h

7,
50

0.
00

3,
25

0.
00

4,
25

0.
00

Sp
ec

ia
lI

ns
pe

ct
io

ns
27

,6
29

.0
0

17
,4

35
.4

9
10

,1
93

.5
1

To
po

gr
ap

hi
ca

lS
ur

ve
y

3,
50

0.
00

3,
50

0.
00

Su
bt

ot
al

La
nd

Ac
qu

is
iti

on
Li

ab
ili

tie
s

23
3,

77
8

21
3,

60
7

20
,1

71

Pr
e

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n,

De
si

gn
,a

nd
Co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n
Li

ab
ili

tie
s

JE
Du

nn
Bu

dg
et

Ac
tu

al
Co

st
sI

nc
ur

re
d

Ba
la

nc
e

Re
m

ai
ni

ng
SA

PP
De

sig
n

an
d

Pr
ec

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

JE
Du

nn
38

6,
00

0.
00

37
1,

46
6.

00
14

,5
34

.0
0

Co
ns

tr
uc

ta
nd

Eq
ui

pt
Li

br
ar

y
Fa

ci
lit

y
(D

es
ig

n
Bu

ild
Co

nt
ra

ct
)

3,
12

5,
22

2.
00

3,
13

9,
75

5.
00

(1
4,

53
3.

00
)

Su
bt

ot
al

Pr
e

Co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n

&
De

si
gn

Li
ab

ili
tie

s
JE

Du
nn

3,
51

1,
22

2
3,

51
1,

22
1

1

Bu
dg

et
Ac

tu
al

Co
st

sI
nc

ur
re

d
Ba

la
nc

e
Re

m
ai

ni
ng

To
ta

lP
ro

je
ct

Li
ab

ili
tie

s(
no

ti
nc

lu
di

ng
is

su
an

ce
co

st
s)

3,
74

5,
00

0
3,

72
4,

82
8

20
,1

72

Li
br

ar
y

Pr
oj

ec
tB

ud
ge

tR
ep

or
t

As
of

20
20

04
30


